
Town of Rico Memorandum 

Date: February 14, 2023 

TO: Town of Rico Board of Trustees 

From: Chauncey McCarthy 

Presentation by Region 9 Economic Development District  
 
Heather Otter from Region 9 Economic Development District will present. Presentation material is 
included in the packet.  

Consideration of second reading Ordinance No. 2023-01 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
Colorado approving the sale of town owned property located at 13 South Glasgow Avenue 

Included in the packet is Ordinance No 2023-01 which approves the sale of town owned property located 
at 13 South Glasgow Avenue. If the town sells any property an ordinance is required approving the sale 
per the Town’s charter. This ordinance, if approved, is not effective until 30 days after the second 
reading.  Ordinance No. 2023-01 has been amended since the first reading to include the agreement to 
amend/extend contract due to the need to extend both the closing date timeline and other timebound 
requirements.  

Rico Library discussion 
 
Members of the Dolores County Library Board have been invited to this meeting to discuss the Rico 
Library. After an in depth review of town files and minutes no lease has been found. The library board 
and town should work towards creating a lease.  
 
Town Shop Update 
 
The most recent design and construction documents for the Town shop project will be provided to the 
Trustees at the February meeting. The architect and engineers should have all documents finished by the 
end of month. With documents and cost estimates in hand, this will allow for Town to apply for the 
DOLA EIAF grant which opens on March 1, 2023.  Troy Bernberg of Northland Securities will provide 
information and an update on the lease purchase option the Town will have to pursue to offset the 
required grant match.  
 
Rico Land Use Code global revision 
 
Michael Contillo, Rico Planning Commission Chairman, will provide an update on the Rico Land Use 
Code global revision.  
 
Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) agreement status 
 
Mayor Pieterse to lead a discussion on the status of the Voluntary lead soils clean up (“VCUP”) 
agreement. Steps for VCUP approval and near-term implementation handout has been included in the 
packet. 
 
 
 
 

1



2023 and beyond work plan review 
 
Feedback from last month’s work session has been compiled into the 2023 and beyond work plan. This 
document will be a draft document in which we can discuss at the meeting and make the necessary 
modifications needed.  

2



 
RICO TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Date: January 23, 2023 
 
Trustees Present:   Mayor Nicole Pieterse 
   Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon 
   Trustee Joe Dillsworth 
   Trustee Christopher Condon (6:08 arrival) 
   Trustee Benn Vernadakis 
   Trustee Jordan Carr (Sworn in 8:10PM) 
  
Trustees Absent: 
   Trustee Joe Croke  
 
                                              
Staff Present.   Chauncey McCarthy, Anna Wolf 
 
Work Session 
Town Manager gives summary of the purpose of this work session. 
 
Goals and objectives of Board Members: 
 
Pat:  

• Water – finding a sustainable solution for the water needs of the Town 
• Town shop including staff and equipment. 
• Slowing down and learning from other communities’ success and downfalls. Keeping 

things simple. 
• Save money 
• Storm drains and how to fund them 
• Home rule charter and master plan and what changes are needed there 
• School 
• Consideration for everything we do keeping things affordable. 

Benn: 
• Fire department, limited on resources. Try to see if some attention can be focused on 

that. Public safety is important. 
• Seeing subdivisions that require extra water taps. A fee structure for future water supply. 

Developers taking on the expenses. Significant increase in fees for reopening of silver 
creek. The future of water is silver creek  

• Increase fees for the road department. Not unreasonable to ask developer to share the 
responsibility. 

• People are not happy about property taxes going into a sewer fund. Look into a special 
district. Special districts take on the burden. Water is more important. Sewer money to 
be used towards water. 

• Help the businesses with multi-unit inn. To bring people into this town for more than 
daytime activities.  Incentivize lodging. 

3



Joe D: 
• Once through LUC look into the Master plan. Home rule charter is messy, needs 

cleaning up. 
• Revisit recycling program. Maybe with the new shop. Coordinated trash pickup at shop. 
• Water conservation discussion. Measures that will promote it. Banning sod, 

brainstorming to promote water conservation. 

Chris C: 
• Citizen communication and engagement. Responsibility to the community. Over 

communicating. 
• Planning for development. Water, access, conservation 
• PUD 
• Sewer and drainage to the VCUP 
• Town shop. The sale of town assets.  
• School district initiative. Redistricting of Rico. Having an active hand in it 
• Close out the VCUP 

Nicole 
• VCUP 
• Infrastructure 
• Open space and recreation 

Board Discussion and Prioritization: 
 
Infrastructure: 

1) Water is the most pressing. Conservation milestone. Impact fees connected to the 
moratorium. Framework for an ordinance. Updating the water rules and regulations. 
Grants for reactivating Silver creek. Putting nest egg into a CSAFE like fund. Use as 
grant match to reactivate Silver creek. 

2) Town Shop and street fund. Taxes are very low. A mil levy increase for the Street fund. 
This fund runs at a deficit. Chauncey: grant cycle, may be awarded in June. Site work 
end of summer through fall finish in summer 2024. Also tear down the old building. 
Looking into a street levy, modest may gain approval from the voters. Chris: Coordinate 
to offset non-competing ballots such as the Fire Department. 

3) Communication: talk potential solutions. High level summary of the meetings the 
Monday after the meetings. Being as transparent as we can. Link in newsletter for 
minutes. More education needed to be done. Quarterly Town update. Post a survey on 
what the public would like to see. Imperative we have a form to get community 
involvement. 

Public Comment: 
Teal: extending deep gratitude for being here and being engaged and really caring for the 
community. The first meeting of the New Year. In agreement with a lot that was outlined in the 
work session. Looking forward to the community stepping forward. We all have a lot in common. 
Our relationship with place and how to move forward with the community. Grateful for the fact of 
slowing down, doing things right the first time. Being in charge of the change we want to see. 
 
Eamonn: Questioned why there isn’t a link on the Town website to all of the businesses in town 
as there used to be. The Board explained that the Town moved to a new platform 4-5 years ago 

4



and this section was never made to match the old website. Chauncey explained that he tried to 
get a Chamber of Commerce together but there was no interest from local business owners. 
 
Town Managers report on relevant topics to the Work Session: 
 
Storm water management: ARCO will pay for engineering. Met with the firm. They have strong 
scope of the work. Hopefully we are moving through that process. ARCO will pay for sections 
that are being remediated. Their contribution will cover the matching funds for grants. 
 
RFP out for sewer: using Big Direct. 32 engineering firms have downloaded the bid. This platform 
is making the town more visible. The Town Manager for sees strong RFPs coming to the Town. 
Having a proposed option and a backup. A firm that is able to find funding is important. Larger 
national firms have been interested. Will have this at the February meeting. This is regarding the 
engineering portion of the project. This step is necessary to release funding. There is a lot of 
money available. Need to engage a firm that has a lot of connection. There is a chance if the 
funding mechanisms available to have a 1 phase rollout. Goal is to have a town wide system. 
Looking at 70-80% forgiveness. Would like to see it in a manner that is the citizens can afford it.  
 
Call to Order 7:04 
 
Approval of the Agenda 
 
Motion 
To approve the agenda. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Chris Condon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
Approval of the Minutes 
 
Motion 
To approve the minutes. 
 Moved by Trustee Joe Dillsworth, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
Consent Agenda 
Payment of the Bills 
 
Motion 
To approve the payment of the bills. 
 Moved by Mayor Nicole Pieterse, seconded by Trustee Joe Dillsworth. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0. 
 
Public Comment: 
Laurie Adams: Glad to see the emergency moratorium, it is important to give it time. Artists of 
Rico would like to add art on the open space of the east side of the hallway.  
 

5



Skip Zeller: The last revision of the master plan was updated 20 years ago. It needs to be 
updated. Opportunity for the community to get involved. Suggest the potential to get a group of 
people to formulate as the community see it. Ask that the town entertain the idea. 
 
Teal: Gratitude to the town board. Be kind to each other, we may not agree on everything. Look 
for commonalities. It will make the community stronger. 
 
Nicole: seen complaints about dogs attaching people. Dogs need to be licensed.  
Chauncey: it is a priority of the Marshall, there will be consequences. 
 
Nicole: Should consider putting avalanche danger signs out where people enter the back 
country. 
 
Kiplynn Smith would like to do a presentation on mitigation for fire for the Town’s residence as 
well as the Town. Money may be available for the town to have a fire mitigation plan. 
 
Presentations 
 
San Miguel Power Association 
Terry Schuyler and Wiley Freeman gave a presentation. 
 
Nicole: finding the land to put the project on will be the crux of this project. 
 
Teal: Would like to coordinate and work with San Miguel Power regarding geothermal energy. 
 
Skip Zeller: asked clarifying questions about the system. 
 
Detachment and annexation of Rico from the Dolores School District 
John Pandolfo from the Telluride R-1 school district gave a presentation. 
 
John expressed that this is a tight timeline but doable. The communities need to work together. 
 
Nicole: The measure did not pass in the past in Dove Creek. We need to make sure the Dolores 
School Board supports the measure this time. Need to get the County Commissioners to support 
the measure as well. 
 
Action Items  
Appointing of Board of Trustee Seat  
Mayor Nicole Pieterse gives summary on Jordan Carr’s letter of interest 
 
Public Comment: 
Skip Zeller: Jordan would be a great addition to the Board. He has been active in the community 
since they moved here. He believes in what the Community believes in. 
 
Motion 
To appoint Jordan Carr the vacant seat on the Board of Trustees. 
 Moved by Trustee Chris Condon, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 5-0 
 
Jordan Carr was sworn in at 8:10PM by Town Clerk Anna Wolf. 

6



 
Appointing of Planning Commission seats 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gives summary of the 4 letters of interest that were received. 
There are 2 full seats available, 1 full term alternate seat as well as 1 short term alternate seat to 
fill. 
 
Michael Contillo and Cristal Hibbard to receive the full seat appointments. Brad Fox to receive the 
full term alternate seat, and Kiplynn Smith to receive the short term alternate seat. 
Motion 
To appoint Mike Contillo chair of the planning commission, Cristal Hibbard to a full term seat. Brad 
Fox as the alternate full term seat and Kiplynn as the one year alternate 
 Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0 
 
Consideration of a letter of support for the Rico Fire Protection District application for an enterprise 
zone designation. 
Town Manager gave a summary. 
David Kunz summarizes the incentive for the Fire District. 
Nicole requested some verbiage changes in the letter of support. 
 
Motion 
To approve this letter of support with the verbiage change 
 Moved by Trustee Jordan Carr, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Consideration of an agreement between the United States Forest Service and the Town of Rico 
regarding Forest Service Road 422 and Burnett Creek Bridge 
Town Manager gives summary of the hit list of repairs that will be necessary in the future. Legal 
was consulted. Most repairs can happen in-house. The version in the packet is the redline version 
that was agreed upon by the board, out legal and the Forrest Service. 
 
Motion 
To approve the agreement between the United States Forest Service and the Town of Rico 
regarding Forest Service Road 422 and the Burnett Creek Bridge. 
 Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Patrick Fallon, seconded by Trustee Chris Condon.  
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Consideration of second reading of Ordinance No 2022-12 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, 
amending the Rico Land Use Code Fee Schedule, and adopting the UBC 97 table no. 1-a- 
building permit fees 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarthy gave a summary of the ordinance and the First reading. 
Nothing has changed between readings. 
 
Request was made to update the second reading date to January 23rd, 2023. 
 
Motion 
To approve the second reading of Ordinance No. 2022-12. 
 Moved by Mayor Nicole Pieterse, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis.  

7



 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
 
Consideration of first reading of Ordinance 2023-01 an Ordinance of the Town of Rico, Colorado 
approving the sale of town owned property located at 13 South Glasgow Avenue 
Town Manager gave a summary of the Ordinance. 
The process started in April 2022 when it was recommended to the Board to consider selling the 
commercial space to use as a match for the Town Shop project. As it is the commercial space is 
at a $400 a month rent rate. There is no place for a business to move from this space and the 
rent does not offset the maintenance that is needed to maintain the building. 
 
The Town got a brokers opinion on the value of the commercial space and it was assessed at 
$200,000. 
An offer was extended to the current tenants this led to a $195,000 cash in hand offer from the 
current tenants. There is no commission for a realtor, no additional costs to the Town. 
The purpose of selling this commercial space is to fund the Town Shop project. The funding needs 
to be in hand by June 2023 to be able to secure other funding for the Town Shop. 
 
The Home Rule Charter requires that this go through 2 readings. If approved on the second 
reading there is a 30 day effective period. A referendum would require a petition of 15% of 
elector’s signature. 
 
Nicole: If this is approved tonight and on second reading on February 15th the effective date will 
be March 16, 2023. 
 
Public Comment: 
Skip Zeller: Is this a presidency setting situation? If so the Town Board should think it through. 
 
Laurie Adams: Was surprised to learn about this recently through the Rico Bulletin Board.  There 
needs to be better community communication. This should have gone out to public bidding. She 
has heard there were other offers on the table. Concerned about the communication and 
transparency. The people should have the opportunity to participate. We all need to be better 
tuned in. 
 
Skip Zeller: this was not as public as it could have been. There is a certain amount of trust the 
people need to put into the Town Board to be able to do their jobs. Perhaps not everyone can 
know everything. 
 
Nicole: while not everything is in the agenda and some items come up in the Managers report. 
The Board meetings are broadcasted 3 different ways. 
 
Laurie Adams: Social Media goes both ways. People don’t want to attend the meetings because 
it is tedious. 
 
Nicole: there is a process called a referendum. It is in the Home Rule Charter. 
 
Motion 
To approve Ordinance 2023-01 on the first reading. 
. 
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Mayor Nicole Pieterse. 

8



 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Consideration of a liquor license renewal, Garden Bar, applicant 
Town Clerk Anna Wolf confirms all is in order with this application. 
 
Motion 
To approve the liquor license renewal for the Garden Bar. 
 Moved by Mayor Nicole Pieterse, seconded by Trustee Joe Dillsworth.  
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
Consideration of a liquor license renewal, Prospector Bar and Grill, applicant 
Town Clerk Anna Wolf confirms all is in order with this application however it did expire 1/19/23. 
 
Motion 
To approve the liquor license renewal for the Prospector Bar and Grill. 
 Moved by Trustee Joe Dillsworth, seconded by Trustee Benn Vernadakis.  
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0 
 
Staff Report 
Clerk’s Report 
The Town Clerk reported on closing out the year. 
 
Manager’s Report  
Dark Skies Community discussion: Seeing if there is interest in pursuing the process. If the town 
decides to move forward there is a small financial burden for the Town. The ultimate benefit is 
tourism. There are already things in the Land Use Code that support this. 
 
Sewer RFP: The new platform allows the town to be compliant with grant guidelines. 
 
New Polaris side by side: a small portion of the Park supplies was allocated to this purchase. 25 
hours of run time is necessary before the machine can groom. Access will be better. This also 
allows for easier access to the water tanks without plowing. 
 
Working on a Parks Engagement Team. This would be a point person for communicating with the 
people. 
 
Library Board will join the meeting in February once they replace Linda’s seat. 
 
2022 Audit has begun. This year should be smoother as we are working with the same firm. 
 
Bond Council has been selected. Requires $400,000 funding over 30 years. A big component of 
the Bon Council is to make sure everything is right.  
 
Marty filed in water court to dismiss our case. Motion was approved without prejudice. Our current 
Legal team is taking over water law for the Town. 
 
 
 

9



Discussion Items 
VCUP Status Update 
Mayor Nicole Pieterse gave a detailed summary. Comments have not come back yet. There is a 
draft funding agreement from AR this still needs to be negotiated. The State will determine what 
a public facility lead action level will be. The planning commission is working on the IUC 
amendment for the VCUP to protect the clean-up. 
 
2022 year-end financial review (Q4) 
Town Manager Chauncey McCarty gives summary 
Sales Taxes ended much higher than anticipated. All stayed within the amendment. 
 
Motion 
To adjourn Board of trustee and enter Executive Session: Personnel matters except if the 
employee who is the subject of the session has requested an open meeting.” § 24-6-402(4)(f)(I), 
C.R.S.  
 Moved by Trustee Benn Vernadakis, seconded by Trustee Chris Condon. 
 
Vote.  A roll call vote was taken and the motion was approved, 6-0. 
 
The meeting adjourned. 
 
 
 ___________________                                                                         ________________                                                       
        Anna Wolf                 Nicole Pieterse 
       Rico Town Clerk                                                                                          Mayor 

10



11



12



13



14



Economic 
Development

Heather Otter

02-15-23

Town of Rico

15



Programs, policies, and activities 
that influence economic change 
in a community.

16



Activities
that support 
primary job 
creation

Strategic Planning Business Retention Business Attraction

Real Estate 
Development

Economic 
Development Finance

Small Business 
Development and 

Innovation &

Entrepreneurship

Neighborhood & 
Community Economic 

Development

Workforce 
Development

Resiliency Planning

17



CDAP

18



Primary Jobs-
Direct
________ 

Secondary 
Jobs-Indirect

• export goods and services 
outside the local area

• mainly serve local markets

19



20



Workforce
Factors

• Aging population

• No COVID Baby Boom- less young people to 
enter workforce

• Substance and mental health impact 
potential workforce

• High cost of living

• Lack of housing stock

21



22



23



Rural 
Strategies

1. Place based

2. Asset based

3. Economic gardening

4. Entrepreneur networks

5. Regional approach

24



Colorado 
Roadmaps 
Program –
Central San 
Juans High 
Alpine Team

Goal

• To preserve healthy public lands that sustain 
ecosystem services, a healthy economy, and 
human health and safety across Central San 
Juans High Alpine jurisdictions through 
sustained collaboration with federal land 
agencies.

Colorado Regional Resiliency and Recovery Roadmaps

25



26

https://geekpack.com/


Priorities
for 
Resilience

Future Ready 
Workforce

Natural & Other 
Hazard 

Resiliency

Building & 
Infrastructure 
Sustainability

Agriculture & 
Food Security

Housing 
Attainability

Community 
Capacity

27



Metrics

Address progress 
and impact.

Align with multiple 
priorities

Within our ability 
to influence

Easy to understand 
in terms of 

importance and 
relevance.

Readily available 
on an annual basis.

Comparable to 
other regions

28



• Administer state and federal 
programs for region

• Called Economic Development 
Districts, Councils of 
Governments, Association of 
Governments

• 26- Board members – 17 govt 
jurisdictions including Bayfield

• Convene regional efforts

29



Region 9 
Programs

• Business Loans

• Enterprise Zone

• Grants

• Regional Coordination

• Economic Development Planning/Projects (CEDS)

• State, regional and local Data 

• SCAPE SW Colorado Accelerator Program for 
Entrepreneurs

• SWCO council of governments (COG)

30



31



Region 9 
Priorities

Broadband, Infrastructure, 
Workforce/Business, Housing

32



Infrastructure

• Broadband 

• Transportation and Transit

• Water/sewer/roads

• Housing

33



Workforce 
Pipelines

• Homegrown Talent Cortez and Durango

• Southwest Colorado Education Collaborative

• Colorado Roadmap Program

• Montezuma Community Collective – Montezuma 
Leadership Network

• Fort Lewis College certification programs are 
expanding.

• Pueblo Community College Southwest Satellite 
Campuses added to Durango, Bayfield, Ignacio, Dove 
Creek, and Pagosa’s is on the way. Expanded 
programs for nursing, EMT, agriculture

• Commercial Driver’s License Programs

• Colorado Workforce Development Programs

34



Business 
Support

• Enterprise Zone

• SCAPE

• 11 Divisions at OEDIT
Business Funding and Incentives

Cannabis Business Office

Colorado Creative Industries

Colorado Employee Ownership Office

Colorado Office of Film, Television and Media

Colorado Outdoor Recreation Industry Office 

Colorado Small Business Development Center Network 
Colorado Tourism Office

Global Business Development Minority Business Office

Colorado Rural Opportunity Office
35



Let’s Connect!

Heather Otter

Region 9 Economic Development

heather@region9edd.org

(970) 828-5207

www.region9edd.org

36

mailto:heather@region9edd.org
http://www.region9edd.org/


TOWN OF RICO 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO APPROVING 
THE SALE OF TOWN OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED AT 13 SOUTH 
GLASGOW AVENUE  

WHEREAS, the Town of Rico, Colorado (the “Town”) is a Colorado home rule 
municipality organized pursuant to Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and with the authority 
of the Rico Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) has the power pursuant to C.R.S. §§ 31-
15-101(d) and 31-15-713(1)(b) to sell and dispose of, by ordinance, real property owned by the 
Town and not used or held for any governmental purpose; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Charter Article XIV § 14.1, the Board is authorized to sell or 
dispose of, by ordinance, the Town’s interest in real property; and 

WHEREAS, the Town owns that real property described as Lot 7, Block 1, Town of Rico, 
according to the official plat of said Town, recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder, 
Dolores County, State of Colorado, also known as 13 South Glasgow Avenue, Rico, Colorado 
81332 (the “Property”); and  

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interest of the Town to sell the 
Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Town has negotiated a Contract to Buy and Sell Real Estate for the 
Property (the “Contract”) with the Buyer, Rico Loco Bicycles LLC, a Colorado limited liability 
company, dated December 22, 2022.  Such Contract is attached hereto as Exhibit 1, and 
incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Contract is contingent on the Board’s approval of the Contract; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the Contract and desires to approve it; and   

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the adoption of this ordinance is necessary and 
proper to provide for the safety, health, prosperity and order of the Town. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF RICO THAT: 

Section 1. The recitals above are hereby adopted as findings and incorporated herein. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves the sale of the Property pursuant to the terms of 
the Contract attached as Exhibit 1.  

37



Section 3. Ordinances authorizing the acquisition or disposal of real estate interests 
shall take effect thirty days after final approval and shall be subject to citizen referendum according 
to the procedures in the Charter, Article XII. 

Section 4. All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the Board are hereby 
repealed to the extent that said ordinances, or parts thereof, are in conflict with this Ordinance.   

Section 5. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or provision of this Ordinance, or 
the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent, be held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections 
thereof to any person or circumstance, shall remain in full force and shall in no way be affected, 
impaired or invalidated. 

INTRODUCED, READ AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING AT A REGULAR 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO HELD 
ON JANUARY 23, 2023. 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________ 
Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 

 

 

PASSED, APPROVED ON SECOND READING, ADOPTED AND ORDERED 
PUBLISHED IN FULL AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO HELD ON FEBUARY 15, 2023. 

TOWN OF RICO, COLORADO 
 

___________________________________ 
Nicole Pieterse, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Anna Wolf, Town Clerk 
 
 

Effective Date: March 16, 2023 

38



Exhibit 1

39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



 
 

THIS FORM HAS IMPORTANT LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AND THE PARTIES SHOULD CONSULT LEGAL AND TAX OR 
OTHER COUNSEL BEFORE SIGNING. 

 
AGREEMENT TO AMEND/EXTEND CONTRACT 

Date:  February 1, 2023  

1. This agreement amends the contract dated  December 22, 2022  (Contract) between Town of Rico, a Colorado 

 home rule municipality  (Seller) and  Rico Loco Bicycles LLC, a Colorado limited liability company 
(Buyer) relating to the sale and purchase of the following legally described real estate in the County of  Dolores , 
Colorado (insert legal description): 

 

Lot 7, Block 1, Town of Rico, Dolores County, Colorado 
 
 
 
 
 
 

known as: 13 Glasgow Ave Rico CO 81332 

Street Address City State Zip 

 
(Property). 

 

NOTE: If the table is omitted, or if any item is left blank or is marked in the “No Change” column, it means no change to 
the corresponding provision of the Contract. If any item is marked in the “Deleted” column, it means that the corresponding 
provision of the Contract to which reference is made is deleted. 

 
2. § 3.1. Dates and Deadlines. [Note: This table may be omitted if inapplicable.] 

 

Item 
No. 

 
Reference 

 
Event 

Date or 
Deadline 

No 
Change 

 
Deleted 

1 § 3 Time of Day Deadline  x  
2 § 4 Alternative Earnest Money Deadline 2/6/23   

  Title    
3 § 8 Record Title Deadline (and Tax Certificate)  x  
4 § 8 Record Title Objection Deadline  x  
5 § 8 Off-Record Title Deadline  x  
6 § 8 Off-Record Title Objection Deadline  x  
7 § 8 Title Resolution Deadline  x  
8 § 8 Third Party Right to Purchase/Approve Deadline  x  

  Owners’ Association    
9 § 7 Association Documents Deadline  x  
10 § 7 Association Documents Termination Deadline  x  

  Seller’s Disclosures    
11 § 10 Seller’s Property Disclosure Deadline  x  
12 § 10 Lead-Based Paint Disclosure Deadline  x  

  Loan and Credit    
13 § 5 New Loan Application Deadline  x  
14 § 5 New Loan Terms Deadline 3/10/23   
15 § 5 New Loan Availability Deadline 3/10/23   
16 § 5 Buyer’s Credit Information Deadline  x  
17 § 5 Disapproval of Buyer’s Credit Information Deadline  x  
18 § 5 Existing Loan Deadline  x  
19 § 5 Existing Loan Termination Deadline  x  

The printed portions of this form, except differentiated additions, have been approved by the Colorado Real Estate Commission. 
(AE41-6-21) (Mandatory 1-22) 

61



20 § 5 Loan Transfer Approval Deadline  x  
21 § 4 Seller or Private Financing Deadline  x  

  Appraisal    
22 § 6 Appraisal Deadline  x  
23 § 6 Appraisal Objection Deadline  x  
24 § 6 Appraisal Resolution Deadline  x  

  Survey    
25 § 9 New ILC or New Survey Deadline 2/9/23   
26 § 9 New ILC or New Survey Objection Deadline 2/10/23   
27 § 9 New ILC or New Survey Resolution Deadline 2/13/23   

  Inspection and Due Diligence    
28 § 2 Water Rights Examination Deadline  x  
29 § 8 Mineral Rights Examination Deadline  x  
30 § 10 Inspection Termination Deadline  x  
31 § 10 Inspection Objection Deadline  x  
32 § 10 Inspection Resolution Deadline  x  
33 § 10 Property Insurance Termination Deadline  x  
34 § 10 Due Diligence Documents Delivery Deadline  x  
35 § 10 Due Diligence Documents Objection Deadline  x  
36 § 10 Due Diligence Documents Resolution Deadline  x  
37 § 10 Environmental Inspection Objection Deadline (CBS2, 3, 4)  x  
38 § 10 ADA Evaluation Termination Deadline (CBS2, 3, 4)  x  
39 § 10 Conditional Sale Deadline  x  
40 § 10 Lead-Based Paint Termination Deadline  x  
41 § 11 Estoppel Statements Deadline (CBS2, 3, 4)  x  
42 § 11 Estoppel Statements Termination Deadline (CBS2, 3, 4)  x  

  Closing and Possession    
43 § 12 Closing Date 3/20/23   
44 § 17 Possession Date  x  
45 § 17 Possession Time  x  

      
      

 

3. Other dates or deadlines set forth in the Contract are changed as follows: 
 
 
 
 

4. Additional amendments: 
 

Buyer assigns the Contract to Not For Sale LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All other terms and conditions of the Contract remain the same. 
 

62



This proposal expires unless accepted in writing by Seller and Buyer as evidenced by their signatures below and the offering party 
to this document receives notice of such acceptance on or before  2/3/23 . 

63



Date Time 
 

Loco Bicycles LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Buyer’s Name: Rico   Buyer’s Name:  

 
Feb 2, 2023 

   

Justin Bain (Feb 2, 2023 11:22 MST)     

Buyer’s Signature Date  Buyer’s Signature Date 

 
Seller’s Name:  Tow 

 
Nicole Y. Pieterse D 

D  

 
n of Rico, Colorado  
 
gitally signed by Nicole Y. Pieterse 
te: 2023.02.01 20:41:51 -07'00' 

 
Seller’s Name:   

Seller’s Signature Date  Seller’s Signature Date 
 

64

https://na1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA9xOJELBWWkhyQiRpTkCHlZIQarprrkbz
https://na1.documents.adobe.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA9xOJELBWWkhyQiRpTkCHlZIQarprrkbz


Steps needed for implementation of VCUP and Funding Agreement 
 

1. Steps needed for approval of VCUP and Funding Agreement 
a. Finalize and secure approval of VCUP 

i. Finalize response to CDPHE comments (anticipate doing so by February 17) 
ii. Secure Town Board approval of VCUP for submittal to CDPHE, conditioned 

on Town approving and signing  Funding Agreement and adopting 
amendments to Land Use Code (“LUC”) 

iii. CDPHE approval of VCUP 
b. Finalize and approve amendments to LUC 

i. Town Attorney review draft amendments to LUC 
ii. Town Board approval of LUC amendments through process of Planning 

Commission meeting and two Board Meetings  
c. Finalize and approve Intergovernmental Agreement (“IGA”) with CDPHE 

i. Town Attorney review of IGA 
ii. Town Board approval of IGA 

iii. CDPHE approval of IGA 
iv. Town and AG office execute IGA 

d. Finalize and approve Funding Agreement 
i. Draft Funding Agreement received from AR at end of January 

ii. KKR is reviewing and anticipates giving comments to Town the week of 
February 20 

iii. Finalize incremental costs schedule 
iv. Town Board approval of Funding Agreement 

2. Steps needed when VCUP becomes effective (can be arranged in advance of effective date) 
a. Town hires subcontractor to serve as liaison between Town and AR SMP Contractor 

in Phases 1 and 2 (to be funded by AR per Funding Agreement) 
b. AR hires SMP Contractor for Phases 1 and 2 
c. AR arranges for clean fill stockpile and supply of geotextile fabric 
d. Town and AR develop and distribute public outreach materials to inform Town 

property owners and residents about VCUP and LUC requirements (flow charts, 
forms, information on website, etc.) 

e. Town opens separate, dedicated Town banking accounts as required in Funding 
Agreement to receive AR funding 

f. Town develops system for Town to review incremental costs reimbursement requests 
and distribute funding 

g. Obtain additional insurance if/as needed 
3. Additional steps to implement VCUP 

a. Stormwater/road drainage study 
i. Draft and execute MOU with AR for funding of study in advance of Funding 

Agreement 
ii. Town hires contractor to conduct study (funded by AR)(note – RFP closed, 

Town working on next steps) 
iii. Contractor conducts and completes study 

b. Road remediation work (contractor will oversee work as part of stormwater/drainage 
study work) 

65



i. Prepare scope of work, bid package, and/or request for proposals; solicit 
bids/proposals 

ii. Obtain Town Attorney (or KKR) advice on contracting requirements to ensure 
compliance with Town code and State law 

iii. Select road remediation work contractor (after consultation with AR) 
iv. Secure funding for drainage improvements for which Town is responsible 

c. Develop and distribute public outreach materials about Phase 1 sampling and granting 
AR access for sampling 

66



Goal: Reactive silver creek water system 

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 
Impose development fees for subdivisions, PUD and large 
scale developments

 Ordinance adopted by 
June-2023

Chauncey McCarthy/legal/Board of 
Trustees In process

RFP for engineering documents for the necessary 
improvements needed to reactive silver creek  Select Firm by Jan-2024

Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees

May be able to use 2018 
Water PER 

Pursue funding to reactive silver creek 
To run concurrent with 
engineering 

Chauncey McCarthy/Engineering 
firm

State revolving fund, grants, 
and potential federal funding 
will all be necessary to offset 
this project's cost

Go out to bid for water system improvements, construct 
improvements, reactive silver creek 

Contingent upon funding. 
Ideally breaking ground 
summer 2025

Chauncey McCarthy/Engineering 
Firm/ Board of Trustees / 
Construction company 

Funding is the biggest hurdle 
for this project. As federal 
infrastructure funds roll out 
there will be a better 
understanding of the potential 
timeline

Goal: Repair or replace third storage water tank 

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 

Research and determine funding sources Complete by Sep-2023 Chauncey McCarthy 

Funding for tank rehab is 
limited. Water taps sales may 
offset cost 

Pursue funding via grant, state revolving fund, water taps 
sold. Budget for repairs Complete by Dec-2023 Chauncey McCarthy 

Estimate from summer 2022 
was 250,000

Go out to bid for water tank rehabilitation and complete 
necessary work Complete by Oct-2024

Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Tank Rehabilitation 
company  

Water Infrastructure

67



Goal: Construct New Town Shop 

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 

Finalize construction documents End of Feb-2023
Chauncey McCarthy/Goff 
Engineering/Wiley Architecture Almost Completed

Apply for DOLA EIAF grant to offset construction cost
 Grant Due March-2023 
Awarded June-2023 Chauncey McCarthy

Finalize lease purchase option need to fund the project 
and amend budget 

Budget amendment July-
2023

Chauncey McCarthy/Troy 
Bernberg/Board of Trustees

Include sale of town owned 
space as revenue 

Go out for bid for construction  
July-2023 through August- 
2023

Chauncey McCarthy/ Board of 
Trustees

Construct shop 
August-2023 through 
October-2024

Chauncey McCarthy/Construction 
company

Project will include public 
parking, bathroom, and 
secured yard storage

Goal: Maintain employees and update equipment 

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 

Pursue a mill levee increase during the November 2023 
election November-2023 election 

Chauncey McCarthy/Legal/Anna 
Wolf/Board of Trustees/Resident 
electors

This failed at the ballot in 
2021. A different approach will 
need to be taken to be 
successful

Purchase new smaller front end loader* Order by October-2024
Chauncey McCarthy /Board of 
Trustees

Hopefully the small dresser 
loader can last one more 
winter season 

Purchase water truck* Spring-2025
Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees

ARCO has committed to 
spraying roads prior to their 
remediation 

Provide pay raises to stay competitive with other 
employers Yearly

Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees

Increase wages based on CPI 
and other comp sets

Street Fund and Infrastructure

*large purchases will be more manageable with a mill levy increase. If mill levy fails again these purchases will need to staggered greater then what is proposed.

68



Goal: Centralized Sewer System*

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 
Complete amended PER for town waste water treatment 
and collection system Final Report Aug-2023

Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Engineering Firm

RFP selection to be made Feb 
15, 2023

Pursue funding to continue project Ongoing
Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Engineering Firm

State revolving fund, grants, 
and potential federal funding 
will all be necessary to offset 
this project's cost

Successfully release the 2.5 million dollars of 
congressionally directed spending Ongoing 

Chauncey McCarthy/Engineering 
firm

EPA is still working through 
how the funds will be released.

Create construction documents, install improvements, 
and construct treatment facility Unknown 

Chauncey McCarthy/Engineering 
Firm/ Board of Trustees / 
Construction company/Engineering 
Firm 

Project may be phased based 
upon funding opportunities. 

Sewer Infrastructure

*Due to the size, scope, and complexity of this project timelines at this point are near impossible to determine. Once the amending PER is completed and funding is 
investigated there should be a better understanding of what is feasible. Still waiting to see how federal funding will be dispersed

69



Goal: Update Municipal Documents 

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 

Rico Land Use Code global revision Complete by April 2024

Chauncey McCarthy/Jennifer 
Stark/Planning Commission/Board 
of Trustees/Legal 

In process now. Will require 
planning commission 
recommendation and Board of 
Trustees adoption 

Revise Home Rule Charter Complete by May 2024
Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Legal 

Work through charter 
amendments during Trustee 
meetings

Go to ballot with proposed Home Rule Charter 
amendments November 2024 Election 

Chauncey McCarthy/Legal/Anna 
Wolf/Board of Trustees/Resident 
electors

This will require a majority 
vote

Revise Rico Master Plan Start in 2024 

Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Master Planning 
Committee

This is a large project and the 
town may want to consider 
working with a consultant 
through the process

Revise Water Rules and Regulations Adopt by end of 2023
Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Legal/Pat Drew

Address water conservation 
and revise document in its 
entirety 

Codify current legislation 
Start once new RLUC is 
adopted

Chauncey McCarthy/Board of 
Trustees/Municode

Engage with Municode, 
process takes two years.

Municipal Documents 

70



Goal: Improve Parks

Objective Timeframe Persons Responsible Comments/Add' Information 
Activate Community Engagement Team and gain 
community input February 2023 - April 2023

Chauncey McCarthy/CET Team/ 
FPM Consulting 

Create park design and budget April 2023 - May 2023
Chauncey McCarthy/FPM 
Consulting 

Pursue funding for park improvements August 2023 - June 2024
Chauncey McCarthy/FPM 
Consulting 

Construct park improvements July 2024 - Sept 2024
Chauncey McCarthy/FPM 
Consulting/Construction firm 

Park Grand Opening Oct-24
Chauncey McCarthy/FPM 
Consulting/Local Community

Parks and Open Space

71



Research and investigate impact fees for large scale developments 
Provide support to RFPD 
Promote open space
Town shop project includes a parking lot which can be used as an intercept lot during snow removal 

Save Money, responsible purchases and spending 

Revisit recycling program 

Provide support for school district initiative 
Citizen communication and engagement (post agendas in additional locations, provide meeting summary to mailserv list, host two community 
participation meetings a year)

Help local businesses by providing support. (Chamber of commerce)

Additional Notes
Close out VCUP in 2023 (Town wide storm drainage, soil management contractor, remediate roads, adopted IC, educate residents, promote participation)
Continue learning from other communities’ success and downfalls. 

72


	Board of Trustees Feb 2023 Memo
	RICO TOWN BOARD MINUTES January docx
	check registers
	2023 EcoDevo Rico Town Meeting 02-15-23_for packet
	Slide 1: Economic Development  Heather Otter
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Activities that support primary job creation
	Slide 4: CDAP
	Slide 5: Primary Jobs-Direct ________   Secondary Jobs-Indirect
	Slide 6
	Slide 7: Workforce Factors
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10: Rural Strategies
	Slide 11:  Colorado Roadmaps Program – Central San Juans High Alpine Team
	Slide 12
	Slide 13:  Priorities for Resilience
	Slide 14: Metrics
	Slide 15
	Slide 16: Region 9 Programs
	Slide 17
	Slide 18: Region 9 Priorities
	Slide 19: Infrastructure
	Slide 20: Workforce Pipelines
	Slide 21: Business Support
	Slide 22: Let’s Connect!

	ORDINANCE NO. 2023-01 Second reading
	TOR Ordinance No. 2023-01 w. contract
	20230118 Ordinance 2023-XX Sale of Town Property (002)
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE Town of rico, colorado approving the sale of town owned property located at 13 South GlasgoW Avenue
	Section 1. The recitals above are hereby adopted as findings and incorporated herein.
	Section 2. The Board hereby approves the sale of the Property pursuant to the terms of the Contract attached as Exhibit 1.
	Section 3. Ordinances authorizing the acquisition or disposal of real estate interests shall take effect thirty days after final approval and shall be subject to citizen referendum according to the procedures in the Charter, Article XII.
	Section 4. All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the Board are hereby repealed to the extent that said ordinances, or parts thereof, are in conflict with this Ordinance.
	Section 5. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or provision of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent, be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unconstitutional, ...


	bike shop c0ntract

	20230201 SIGNED Amend Extend - Bike Shop




